CLASSIFICAITON OF STOCK MARKET INDEX BASED ON PREDICTIVE FUZZY DECISION TREE

RASHID HAFEEZ KHOKHAR

A thesis submitted in fulfilment of the requirement for the award of the degree of Master of Science (Computer Science)

Faculty of Computer Science and Information System Universiti Teknologi Malaysia

JUNE 2005

Dedicated to my beloved Parents and Teachers

ACKNOLEDGEMENT

First of all I offer my humble thanks to Almighty Allah SWT, who made the things possible, which were impossible for me. Many Darood on our Holy prophet (peace be upon him) being a trivial ummati.

I would like to thank my supervisor, Professor Madya Dr Mohd Noor Md Sap for introducing me in data mining research. I want to express my deep gratitude to my supervisor for his support and guidance through my research as a master student. I am very grateful for the inspiring discussions that led to this thesis. Without their continued support and interest, this thesis would not have been the same as presented here.

I would like to thanks my dear parents Mohd Hafeez Khokhar and Zaineb Perveen, and my brothers for their continuous love, encouraging, support and confidence. In addition, I want to express my profound gratitude to my brothers, Assoc Prof Amjid Hafeez Khokhar and Eng Zahid Hafeez Khokhar for their valuable suggestions during my whole carrier. Without them, this thesis could not have been written.

My fellow postgraduate students Hafiz Faisal Zafar, Anjum Iqbal, Abdul Majid Awan, Mohd Azam Rana, Ahmad Hussain, Abdul Rab, and Adnan Younas should also be recognized for their valuable suggestions and support.

I must express my sincerest and heartiest thanks to my wife Faiqa Rashid and my other family members for their encouraging attitude unfailing patience and excellent co-operation through out my research.

ABSTRACT

Over the past decade many attempts have been made to predict stock market data using statistical and data mining models. However, most methods suffer from serious drawback due to requiring long training times, results are often hard to understand, and producing inaccurate predictions. In addition, the trader's expectations to predict stock markets are seriously affected by some uncertain factors including political situation, oil price, overall world situation, local stock markets etc. Therefore, predicting stock price movements is quite difficult. Data mining techniques are able to uncover hidden patterns and predict future trends and behaviors in financial markets. In this research, another modification of Fuzzy Decision Tree (FDT) classification techniques called predictive FDT is presented that aims to combine symbolic decision trees in data classification with approximate reasoning offered by fuzzy representation. The intent is to exploit complementary advantages of both: ability to learn from examples, high knowledge comprehensibility of decision trees, and the ability to deal with uncertain information of fuzzy representation. In particular, predictive FDT algorithm is based on the concept of degree of importance of attribute contributing to the classification. After constructing predictive FDT, Weighted Fuzzy Production Rules (WFPRs) are extracted from predictive FDT, and then more significant WFPR's are mined by using similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method. In fuzzy reasoning method the weights are assigned to each proposition in the antecedent part and the Certainty Factor (CF) is computed for the consequent part of each Fuzzy Production Rule (FPR). Finally, these rules are used to predict time series stock market in different periods to time. The predictive FDT's are tested using three data sets including Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (KLSE), New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and London Stock Exchange (LSE). The experimental results show that the predictive FDT algorithm and fuzzy reasoning method provides the reasonable performance for comprehensibility (no of rules), complexity (no of nodes) and predictive accuracy of WFPRs for stock market time series data.

ABSTRAK

Setelah berdekad lamanya, banyak percubaan telah dilakukan untuk meramalkan data pasaran saham masa menggunakan model statistik dan perlombongan data. Walaubagaimanapun, kebanyakan kaedah memerlukan masa latihan yang lama, biasanya keputusan yang diperolehi sukar untuk difahami, dan menghasilkan ramalan yang tidak tepat. Tambahan pula, jangkaan pedagang terhadap pasaran saham adalah dipengaruhi oleh faktor-faktor seperti situasi politik, harga minyak, situsasi dunia keseluruhan, pasaran saham tempatan dan lain-lain. Oleh itu, peramalan aliran harga saham adalah amat sukar. Perlombongan data berkebolehan untuk mencari pola tersembunyi dan meramalkan arah aliran masa hadapan dan trend dalam pasaran kewangan. Di dalam penyelidikan ini, teknik klasifikasi lain bagi pepohon keputusan kabur (FDT) yang telah diubah suai, dipanggil predictive FDT digunakan untuk menggabungkan pepohon keputusan simbolik di dalam pengelasan data dengan anggaran hujah yang sesuai menggunakan perwakilan kabur. Tujuannya adalah untuk saling melengkapi kebaikan kedua-duanya : keupayaan untuk belajar daripada contoh, kefahaman pengetahuan yang tinggi dalam pepohon keputusan dan keupayaan untuk berhubung dengan maklumat tertentu berkenaan perwakilan kabur. Paling utama, peramalan bagi pepohon keputusan kabur adalah berdasarkan konsep tahap kepentingan yang menyumbang atribut kepada pengelasan. Selepas membina predictive FDT, peraturan pengeluaran pemberat (WFPRs) diesktrakkan daripada predictive FDT, dan seterusnya WFPRs yang lebih baik boleh diperolehi dengan menggunakan kaedah pemikiran kabur berasaskan persamaan. Dalam kaedah yang dicadangkan parameter pemberat boleh dinyatakan kepada setiap penyataan dalam peraturan pengeluaran kabur (FPR) dan faktor kemungkinan (CF) bagi setiap peraturan. Faktor kemungkinan dikira menggunakan beberapa pembolehubah yang penting dari pasaran saham. Kaedah pemikiran peramalan telah diuji dengan menggunakan tiga set data termasuklah KLSE, NYSE dan LSE. Hasil eksperimen menunjukkan bahawa peramalan bagi algoritma FDT dan kaedah pemikiran kabur menyediakan pencapaian yang agak baik untuk mudah difahami (bilangan peraturan), kekompleksan (bilangan nod) dan mempunyai ketepatan ramalan bagi peraturan WFPR untuk pasaran saham bersirikan data.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER		TITLE	
1	INTR	ODUCTION	1
	1.1	Overview	1
	1.2	Problem Background	2
		1.2.1 Time Series	2
		1.2.2 Support Vector Machine	3
		1.2.3 Linear and Non-linear Statistical Models	4
		1.2.4 Neural Networks	5
		1.2.5 Association Rules	5
		1.2.6 Classification	6
	1.3	Problem Statement	7
	1.4	Objectives of Research	8
	1.5	Research Scope	9
	1.6	Research Contributions	9
	1.7	Thesis Organization	10

LITH	LITERATURE REVIEW				
2.1	Introduction	12			
2.2	Time Series	12			
2.3	Stock Market Prediction				
	2.3.1 Support Vector Machine (SVM)	15			
	2.3.2 Linear and Non-Linear Statistical Models	16			
	2.3.3 Artificial Neural Networks (ANNs)				
	2.3.4 Association Rules	19			
	2.3.5 Fuzzy Sets	21			

2

	2.3.6	Classification	23
2.4	Decisi	on Tree Classification	25
	2.4.1	Crisp Decision Tree	25
	2.4.2	Fuzzy Decision Tree	26
2.5	Fuzzy	Reasoning Methods	32
	2.5.1	Turksen et al.'s Approximate Analogical Reasoning	
	Schen	na (AARS)	34
	2.5.2	Chen's Function T (FT) Method	35
	2.5.3	Yeung et al.'s Equality and Cardinality (EC) Method	36
2.6	Summ	ary	37

3	RESE	CARCH	ARCH METHODOGLOGY			39	
	3.1	Introd	troduction				
	3.2	Opera	tional Fra	onal Framework			
		3.2.1	Problem	Problem Formulation (phase 1)			
		3.2.2	System	Development (phase 2)	2	41	
			3.2.2.1	Data Collection and Extraction	2	42	
			3.2.2.2	Data Cleaning and Exploration	2	43	
			3.2.2.3	Data Engineering	2	44	
			3.2.2.4	Algorithm Engineering	2	45	
			3.2.2.5	Running the Data Mining Algorithm	2	49	
		3.2.3	Implem	entation and Integration (phase 3)	-	50	
			3.2.3.1	Integrated System Components	-	51	
			3.2.3.2	System Performance Testing	-	51	
	3.3	Sumn	nary		4	52	

4	4	INDUCTIVE LEARNING OF PREDICTIVE FUZZY					
		DEC	CISION TREE	54			
		4.1	Introduction	54			
		4.2	Decision Trees Induction	54			
		4.3	Fuzzy Decision Tree Induction	55			

4.4	Stock Market Data Collection and Extraction				
4.5	Data C	Cleaning using ESTEEM (Elimination of Suspicious			
Trainii	ng Exar	nples with Error on the Model) Method	63		
4.6	Predictive Fuzzy Decision Tree (FDT)				
	4.6.1	Centroids of Fuzzy Sets (K-Means Algorithm)	66		
	4.6.2	Fuzzification of Numerical Number	69		
	4.6.3	Triangular Membership Function	71		
	4.6.4	Predictive Fuzzy Decision Tree Algorithm	74		
4.7	Summ	ary	77		

5	FUZ	FUZZY REASONING METHOD BASED ON SIMILARITY						
	TECI	HNIQU	E	78				
	5.1	Introd	uction	78				
	5.2	Weigh	ted Fuzzy Production Rules (WFPRs)	79				
		5.2.1	Weighted Fuzzy Production Rules with Single					
		Antece	edent	80				
		5.2.2	Weighted Fuzzy Production Rules with Multiple					
		Antece	edents	81				
		5.2.3	Transformation of WFPRs from FDT	81				
	5.3	Know	ledge Parameters	82				
	5.4	Similarity-Based Fuzzy Reasoning Methods						
		5.4.1	Approximate Analogical Reasoning Schema (AARS)	83				
		5.4.2	Function T (FT) Method	86				
		5.4.3	Degree of Subsethood (DS) Method	87				
		5.4.4	Equality and Cardinality (EC) Method	89				
	5.5	Fuzzy	Reasoning Method	91				
		5.5.1	Similarity Measure	92				
		5.5.2	Aggregated Weighted Average	93				
		5.5.3	Modification Functions (MF's)	94				
		5.5.4	Rules Propositions	96				
		5.5.5	Fuzzy Reasoning algorithm	97				
	5.6	Summ	ary	99				

5.6	Summary				
-----	---------	--	--	--	--

EXPE	RIMENTS AND RESULTS	100
6.1	Introduction	100
6.2	Applying the Data Mining Process	101
6.3	Experimental Design	102
6.4	Testing Results and Analysis of FDT	104
6.5	Rules Extraction and Experiments	107
6.6	Analyzing Prediction Results	112
6.7	Summary	114

7	CON	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS						
	7.1	Introduction		115				
	7.2	Discussion	Discussion					
	7.3	Future Resear	Future Research					
		7.3.1	Similarity Measures	118				
		7.3.2	Predictions	118				
		7.3.3	Robustness	119				
	7.4	Conclusions		119				

BIBLIOGRAPHY

6

121

APPENDICES	138
APPENDIX A	138
APPENDIX B	140
APPENDIX C	142
APPENDIX D	145
APPENDIX E	149
APPENDIX F	150

APPENDIX G	151
APPENDIX H1	152
APPENDIX H2	152
APPENDIX H3	153
APPENDIX H4	153
APPENDIX H5	154
APPENDIX H6	154
APPENDIX H7	155
APPENDIX H8	155

PUBLICATIONS

156

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE	TITLE	PAGE
2.1	Summary of analytical comparison of fuzzy decision trees	31
2.2	FPR's with single antecedent	34
2.3	FPR's with a multiple antecedents	35
2.4	Analysis of existing similarity-based methods	37
4.1	A comparison between the fuzzy decision tree and the crisp)
	decision tree	56
4.2	20 real time (5-Minute Bars) examples of stock market data	a 62
4.3	Change in stock trading prices for every 5 minutes of time	
	series stock market	63
4.4	After training real time examples of stock market with fuzz	У
	representation	73
6.1	Summary of the experiments for I = FuzzyID3, II =	
	Wang et al., and III = Predictive FDT	105
6.2	An example of 13 extracted WFPRs from FDT in single	
	experiment.	108
6.3	Testing results for significant rules using prediction in chan	ige
	method	111
6.4	The mean squared error between the actual values and the	
	predicted results for 3-case study stock price indexes is up	
	to 3 months	112

LIST OF FIGURES

TITLE

FIGURE NO.

3.1	Research operational frame work	41
3.2	System development process	47
4.1(a)	Fuzzy decision tree using Fuzzy ID3 heuristic	
	(Umanol et al., 1994)	60
4.1(b)	Fuzzy decision tree by Yuan and Shaw's (1995) heuristic	60
4.1(c)	Fuzzy decision tree by using Wang et al., (2001) heuristic	60
4.2	The Esteem method of outlier removal	64
4.3	Procedure for predictive fuzzy decision tree classification	
	method	66
4.4	K-Means algorithms to find centers of the equal patterns	67
4.5	Centroids between two clusters	68
4.6(a)	Linguistic terms for oil price	71
4.6(b)	Linguistic terms for change in close price	71
4.6(c)	Linguistic terms for local stock market	71
4.6(d)	Linguistic terms for primary signal	71
4.7	Fuzzy Decision Tree by using predictive FDT algorithm to	
	train table 4.2	77
5.1	Disconsistency measure	85
5.2	More or Less form	96
5.3	Membership value reduction form	96
6.1	Experimental design for stock market prediction by using	
	5 years information (Jan 1, 1999 to Dec 30, 2004) from	
	KLSE, NYSE and LSE.	103

PAGE

6.2(a)	Experimental results of FuzzyID3, Wang FDT, and	
	Predictive FDT for KLSE	105
6.2(b)	Experimental results of FuzzyID3, Wang FDT, and	
	Predictive FDT for NYSE	106
6.2(c)	Experimental results of FuzzyID3, Wang FDT, and	
	Predictive FDT for LSE	106
6.3	The prediction process for Jan 1 to March 30, 2005 using	
	the historical stock market data from (Jan 1, 1999 to Dec 30,	
	2004).	109
6.4 (a)	Core Points of the rules for three months prediction	110
6.4 (b)	Results using core points of rules for three months	
	predictions from (Jan 1, 1999 to Dec 30, 2004)	110
6.5(a)	Three Months (Jan 1 to March 31, 2005) prediction of	
	Telekom Index from KLSE using random walk and	
	predictive FDT	113
6.5(b)	Three Months (Jan 1 to March 31, 2005) prediction of	
	DowChemical Index from NYSE using random walk and	
	predictive FDT	113
6.5(c)	Three Months (Jan 1 to March 31, 2005) prediction of	
	ABN-Amro Index from LSE using random walk and	
	predictive FDT	114

LIST OF SYMBOLS AND ABBREVATIONS

P_o	-	Open price
P_{C}	-	Close price
V	-	Volume
C_{P_O}	-	Change in open = $\{Low, Average, High\}$,
$C_{P_{C}}$	-	Change in close = {Low, Average, High},
C_{V}	-	Change in volume = {Low, Average, High},
$Entr_i^{(k)}$	-	Minimum classification information-entropy for each
		attribute (k)
$Ambig_i^{(k)}$	-	Minimum classification ambiguity for each attribute (k)
$Th = \lambda_{o}$	-	Threshold value
$CF = \mu$	-	Certainty factor
W	-	Weight for single and multiple antecedent
Gw	-	Weighted average
AG_w	-	Aggregated weighted average
$x_i^{(j)}$	-	Data point
c_j	-	Cluster centre
k	-	Linguistic terms
S	-	Nonleaf node
∇	-	Symmetrical difference of A and A

GR	-	Gain ratio
A	-	Antecedent (pattern)
A [']	-	An observation (fact) of A
С	-	Consequent of a rule
Ċ	-	Result of consequent
$\mu_A(x)$	-	Degree of membership x by linguistic term A
FDT	-	Fuzzy Decision Tree
WFPR's	-	Weighted Fuzzy Production Rules
FPR's	-	Fuzzy Production Rules
KDD	-	Knowledge Discovery in Databases
AARS	-	Approximate Analogical Reasoning Schema
SMP	-	System Marginal Price
FT	-	Function T
DS	-	Degree of Subsethood
IC	-	Inclusion Cardinality
EC	-	Equality and Cardinality
PR	-	Predictive Reasoning
KLSE	-	Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange
NYSE	-	New York Stock Exchange
LSE	-	London Stock Exchange
CF	-	Certainty Factor
DM	-	Degree of Measure
SVM	-	Support Vector Machine
SVR	-	Support Vector Regression
PCD	-	Prediction of change in direction

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview

With the increase of economic globalization and evolution of information technology, financial time series data are being generated and accumulated at an unprecedented pace. As a result, there has been a critical need for automated approaches to effective and efficient utilization of massive amount of financial data to support companies and individuals in strategic planning and investment for decision-making. In this chapter, some problems are discussed that investors are facing during crucial part of their decision process for the selection of real time stock market to invest in. These problems are highlighted by analyzing the existing data mining and statistical techniques for stock market predictions. Among the variety of existing techniques for stock market prediction, Support Vector Machine (SVM), Linear and Non-linear models, Neural Networks, Association Rules, and Classification have found to be good techniques for stock market predictions. However, instead of incredible results for time series stock market prediction, these techniques still have some serious drawbacks to handle time series stock market data. These problems are highlighted in the following section.

1.2 Problem Background

The stock market is a rather complicated system, and good predictions for its developments are the key to successful trading. Traders must predict stock price movements in order to sell at top range and to buy at bottom range. As stock trading is a very risky business (Torben and Lund, 1997), it is necessary to evaluate the risks and benefits before entering into any trading. The key to realize high profits in stock trading is to determine the suitable trading time when the risk of trading should be minimum. Many attempts have been made for meaningful prediction of stock market by using data mining and statistical techniques like Time Series (Agrawak R. et al., 1995a; Breidt, 2002), Support Vector Machine (Alan Fan et al., 2001; Haiqin, 2002), Neural Networks (Xiaohua et al., 2003; Raymond, 2004), Linear and Non-linear models (Weiss, E. 2000; Chinn et al., 2001), Association Rules (Ke and Yu 2000; Sarjon and Noor, 2002a) and Classification (Agrawal R. et al., 2000; Han, J and Pei, 2000). However, these techniques to predict stock market real time data are yet to be achieved good classifiers (model). The following subsections present some general problem background regarding these techniques to predict stock market.

1.2.1 Time Series

Investors are facing with an enormous amount of stocks in the market. The meaningful prediction of time series data is one of the fast growing research areas in field of financial engineering. Investors in the market want to maximize their stock return by buying or selling their investments at an appropriate time. Since stock market data are highly time-variant and are normally in a nonlinear pattern, predicting the future trend (i.e., rise, decrease, or remain steady) of a stock is a challenging problem. Agrawak R. et al., (1995a; 1995b) introduces different similarity queries on time series data to find the behaviors of selling or buying patterns of different stocks. In queries of this type, approximate rather than exact matching is required. Recently some researchers

use data mining techniques for attempting to index, cluster, classify and mine association rules from increasing massive sources of time series data (Iztok et al., 2002; Yimin and Dit-Yan, 2004).

For example Keogh and Pazzani (1998) introduce a new scalable time series classification algorithm. Das et al., (1998) attempt to show, how association rules can be learned from time series. Han et al. (1999) investigate time series databases for periodic segments and partial periodic patterns using data mining methods. All these algorithms that operate on time series data need to compute the similarity between patterns by using Euclidean distance and Euclidean distance sensitive to the absolute offsets of time sequences.

Iztok et al., (2002) present an algorithm for matching sequences with the set of time series. The matching algorithm proposed by them is not enough to be effectively used for other domains including stock market data, sensor data in engineering environments, and medical measurements. In another attempt, the model-based clustering method (Yimin and Dit-Yan, 2004) can incorporate prior knowledge more naturally in finding the correct number of clusters. However, the clustering performances of model-based clustering method degrade significantly when the underlying clusters are very close to each other. Another problem is that it is not designed for modeling the differences in trend of the time series.

1.2.2 Support Vector Machine

Alan Fan et al., (2001) use Support Vector Machine (SVM) to predict stock market. The SVM is a training algorithm for learning classification and regression rules from data (Osuna, 2001). However the predictive accuracy of SVM achieved by Alan Fan et al., (2001) in stock market is relatively lower than other classification applications (Jingtao, 1997; Haiqin, 2002). Also the existing relationship between the future stock returns and its accounting information, one would expect it to be a weak relationship. Support Vector Regression (SVR) is the extended form of SVM that can be applied for the prediction of financial time series data (Jingtao, 1997; Haiqin, 2002). In financial data, due to the embedded noise, one must set a suitable margin in order to obtain a good prediction (Haiqin, 2002). Haiqin et al., (2002) has extended the standard SVR with adaptive margin and classified into four cases. The model proposed by them requires the adaptation of the margin width and the degree of asymmetry and no exact algorithm for such margin setting has been introduced. Some researchers (Mukherjee, 1997; Chihchung and Chih-jen, 2001) try to set this margin with 0 or a very small value, but SVR is still insensitive and non-adaptive to the input data. This may result in less than optimal performance in the testing data while it obtains a good result on the training data.

1.2.3 Linear and Non-linear Statistical Models

The Autoregressive Conditional Heteroskedasticity (ARCH) class of models (Chinn et al., 2001; Pierre and Sébastien, 2004) has become a core part of empirical finance. ARCH is a nonlinear stochastic process, where the variance is time-varying, and a function of the past variance. ARCH processes have frequency distributions which have high peaks at the mean and fat-tails, much like fractal distributions. The issue of forecasting with ARCH models has been discussed by (Koenker and Zhao, 1996). However, the procedures developed are restricted to a limited class of ARCH models, often do not take account of parameter uncertainty, and often have questionable finite sample properties. Another statistical model is Auto Regressive Integrated Moving Average (ARIMA) models have been already applied to forecast commodity prices (Weiss, E., 2000; Chinn et al., 2001). However, since the ARIMA models are linear and most real world applications involve non-linear problems, this introduces a limitation in the accuracy of the predictions generated (Ferreira et al., 2004).

1.2.4 Neural Networks

Artificial Neural Networks (ANN) techniques that have been widely used for load forecasting are now used for price prediction (Nicolaisen, 2000; Hippert, 2001). Using neural networks to model and predict stock market returns has been the subjects of recent empirical and theoretical investigations by academics and practitioners alike (Xiaohua et al., 2003; Raymond, 2004). Xiaohua et al., (2003) investigate whether trading volume can significantly improve the forecasting performance of neural networks, or whether neural networks can adequately model such nonlinearity. Such types of neural networks cannot handle the nonlinearity between stock return and trading volume. Raymond, (2004) introduce a feasible and efficient solution (iJADE Stock Advisor) for automatic intelligent agent-based stock prediction. However, the model appeared highly sensitive to the training parameters and also these method have various numbers of hidden neurons are tested in the experiments and no significant improvements appear, it may be due to not finding the optimal architecture and available training methods.

1.2.5 Association Rules

Association rule mining uncovers interesting correlation patterns among a large set of data items by showing attribute-value conditions that occur together frequently. It has been applied successfully in a wide range of business predicting problems (Ke et al., 2000; Sarjon and Noor, 2002). Pasquier and Bastide (1997) proposed an algorithm, called a close, for finding frequent closed itemsets and their support in a stock market database. However, a close method is costly when mining long patterns or with low minimum support threshold in large database like stock market and also cannot generate association rules at higher levels. In another attempt, typical algorithms for discovering frequent itemsets in stock market by using association rules operate in a bottom-up, breadth-first search direction (Dao-I and Kedem, 2002). The computation starts from frequent 1-itemsets (the minimum length frequent itemsets) and continuous until all maximal (length) frequent itemsets are found. During the execution, every frequent itemset is explicitly considered. Such algorithms perform well when all maximal frequent itemsets are short. However, performance drastically depreciates when some of the maximal frequent itemsets are long.

1.2.6 Classification

Among discovering different kinds of knowledge from large databases, classification has been recognized as an important problem in data mining (Agrawal R. et al., 2000; Hung-Ju and Chun 2002). Classification is one kind of data mining technique to identify essential features of different classes based on a set of training data and then classify unseen instances into the appropriate classes. Many popular classification techniques, Apriori-like approach (Agrawal R. et al., 2000; Xi Ma., 2004), FP-growth (Han, J. and Pei, 2000; Yabo et al., 2002), Naive Bayes Classifier (Hung-Ju and Chun, 2002), Decision Theoretic Model (Elovici and Braha, 2003) Information Network (Last and Maimon, 2004) have been used as data mining problems. These approaches are still not suitable where the real databases contains all records, huge space is required to serve the mining, and large applications need more scalability.

Most trading practice adopted by financial analysts relies on accurate classification prediction of the price levels of financial instruments. However, some recent studies have suggested that trading strategies guided by forecasts on the direction of the change in price level are more effective and may generate higher profits. Wu and Zhang (1997) investigate the predictability of the direction of change in the future spot exchange rate. In another study Aggarwal R. and Demaskey (1997) find that the classification performance of cross hedging improves significantly rates can be predicted. O'Connor et al., (1997) conduct a laboratory-based experiment and conclude that individuals show different tendencies and behaviors for upward and downward series. The findings in these studies are reasonable because accurate point estimation, as judged by its deviation from the actual observation may not be a good predictor of the direction of change in the instruments price level.

1.3 Problem Statement

In recent years, there have been a growing number of studies looking at the direction or trend of movements of various kinds of statistical and data mining techniques (such as Mark et al., 2000; Elovici and Braha, 2003; Zhang and Zhou, 2004). However, as discussed in problem background these techniques have some limitations to handle time series and huge stock market data. Also none of these studies provide a comparative evaluation of different classification techniques regarding their ability to predict the sign of the index return. Among the variety of data mining techniques, classification has found scale well, run fast, and produce highly interpretable results.

In this research, our main focus on the development of classification data mining model to identifying a better decision making classifiers for stock market prediction. In classification, decision tree with fuzzy sets have been used to building classification models for predicting classes for unseen records. The predictive FDT algorithm and similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method are used to answer the following research questions

- How classification data mining techniques are able to uncover hidden patterns and predict future trends and behaviors in financial markets?
- How the trader's expectations can be fulfilled to handle uncertain factors, including political situation, oil price, overall world situation, local stock markets etc?

- How the optimal predictive FDT can be constructed that has better comprehensibility (no of rules), less complexity (no of nodes) and better learning accuracy?
- How similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method can improve the learning accuracy of generated weighted fuzzy production rules for the prediction of stock market data?

1.4 Objectives of Research

The main objectives of this research is to build accurate model by using classification and fuzzy sets in order to make the methods accessible, "user-friendly", and prepared for the broader population of economists, analysts, and financial professionals. To deal with these tasks first predictive FDT are constructed and then WFPR,s are extracted from predictive FDT for predicting stock market. The main objectives of this research are as follows:

- To develop and enhance data mining algorithms for extracting the pattern of knowledge from stock market database.
- To construct predictive FDT for the classification of stock market index that has better performance of comprehensibility (no of rules), lower complexity (no of nodes) and improves the learning accuracy.
- To mine the more significant WFPR's among the extracted rules from predictive FDT by using similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method.
- To evaluate and compare the performance of predictive FDT and similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method with the existing standard methods in order to find the strength and weaknesses of proposed algorithm.

1.5 Research Scope

This research focuses on the enhancement of data mining algorithms in financial application. In data mining algorithms, classification model has been developed to extract the weighted fuzzy production rules for time series stock market prediction. The scope of this research covers the following points:

- Reviews and comparisons of the existing data mining methods to predict future trends and behaviors in financial markets.
- Analyze and evaluate the performance of the predictive FDT algorithm by using three stock exchanges, i.e. KLSE, LSE, and NYSE.
- Test and analyze the predictive FDT algorithms on the chaotic and complex nature of intraday stock market data from 100 different associate stocks.
- Analyze and evaluate the results of predictive FDT and similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method for maximum three months prediction of real time stock market.

1.6 Research Contributions

In this research, the data mining and artificial intelligence technique are used to build classification model for stock market prediction. First, the predictive FDT classifier is constructed and then WFPR's are extracted from predictive FDT for stock market prediction. Some points of major contributions of this research are described as follows:

> The enhancement of classification based data mining algorithms to predict trends and behaviors in financial market.

- The construction of predictive fuzzy decision tree classification, that provides the reasonable performance of the parameters comprehensibility (no of rules), complexity (no of nodes) and predictive accuracy.
- Careful assignment of some uncertain factors including oil price, local stock market, natural disasters etc, for the classification of stock market index.
- In predictive reasoning method, the conventional fuzzy production rules are enhanced to assign a weighting factor to each proposition in the antecedent parts to have various degree of relative importance with respect to the same consequent.

1.7 Thesis Organization

The general research background is given in this chapter. Next chapter presents the brief overview of financial application with description of previous works used on data mining and statistical techniques. Chapter 3 discuss, when we have together defined the problem to solve, in the remaining steps we must collect the relevant data if it does not already exist, clean the data, engineer the data to be maximally useful with the problem at hand, engineer a mining algorithm, run the mining algorithm and explain the results to the expert. In chapter 4 predictive fuzzy decision trees is constructed. In this chapter, first 3 steps are important to implement before applying the predictive FDT algorithm. In first step, K-means clustering method is used to find the center for every fuzzy set and calculate the degree of membership by applying triangular membership function. Finally construct predictive FDT by using fuzzy decision tree algorithm. In chapter 5, similaritybased fuzzy reasoning method is used for mining weighted fuzzy production rules. In this chapter, decision has been made about the more suitable WFPR's for prediction of stock market. In Chapter 6, the experiments and results are presented that are produced from predictive FDT and similarity-based fuzzy reasoning method. The accuracy of extracted WFPR's are also compared with the standard method of stock market

prediction. Finally in chapter 7, the conclusions of predictive fuzzy decision tree and extracted weighted fuzzy production rules have been presented. Some challenges and emerging trends are identified for future research also suggested in this chapter.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Agrawal, R., and Srikant, R. (1994). Fast algorithms for mining association rules. In Proc. 1994 Int. *Conf. Very Large Data Bases*, September 1994, pages 487#499, Santiago, Chile.
- Agrawal, R., Lin, K.-I., Sawhney, H.S., and Shim, K. (1995a). Fast Similarity Search in the Presence of Noise, Scaling, and Translation in Time-Series Databases. *Proc.* 21st Int'l Conf. Very Large Data Bases (VLDB '95), Sept. 1995, pp. 490±501.
- Agrawal, R., Psaila, G., Wimmers, E.L., and Zait, M. (1995b). Querying Shapes of Histories, Proc. 21st Int'l Conf. Very Large Data Bases (VLDB '95), Sept. 1995, pp. 502±514.
- Aggarwal, R., and Demaskey, A. (1997). Using derivates in major currencies for crosshedging currency risks in Asian emerging markets. *Journal of Futures Markets* 17, 781-796.
- Agarwal, R., Aggarwal, C., and Prasad, V. V. V. (2000). A tree projection algorithm for generation of frequent itemsets. *In Journal of Parallel and Distributed Computing* (Special Issue on High Performance Data Mining), (to appear), 2000.
- Alan, Fan., Palaniswami, M. (2001). Stock selection using support vector machines. Proceedings. IJCNN '01. International Joint Conference on Neural Networks, 2001, Volume: 3, 15-19 July 2001 Pages:1793 - 1798 vol.3

- Apergis, N. and Eleptheriou, S. (2001). Stock returns and volatility: Evidence from the Athens stock market index. *Journal of Economics and Finance* 25 1 (2001), pp. 50–61.
- Ayob, M., Mohd, Faidzul. Nasrudin., Khairuddin, Omar., and Miswan, Surip., (2001) The Effect of Return Function on Individual Stock Price (KLSE) Prediction Model Using Neural Networks. *In Proc. of The International Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IC-AI'2001*, Las Vegas, USA, pp 409-415, Jun 2001.
- Balkin, S.D., and Ord, J.K. (2000). Automatic neural network modelling for Univariate time series. *International Journal of Forecasting* 16 (2000), pp. 509–515.
- Baillie, R.T., and Bollerslev, T. (1992). Prediction in dynamic models with timedependent conditional variances, *Journal of Econometrics* 52 (1992), pp. 91–113.
- Bing, L., and Wynne, H. (1999) "Mining association rule with multiple minimum support", Proceeding of ACM SIGKDD International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining (KDD-99), August 15-18, 1999.
- Boes, D.C., and Salas, J. D. (1978). Nonstationarity of the mean and the Hurst phenomenon. *Water Resources Research* 14 (1978), pp. 135–143.
- Breidt, F. Jay., and Nan-Jung, Hsu. (2002). A class of nearly long-memory time series models. *International Journal of Forecasting, Volume 18, Issue 2, April-June* 2002, Pages265-281.
- Buchanan, B. G., and Shortliffe, E. H. (1984). Rule-Based Expert Systems, The MYCIN Experiments of the Stanford Heuristic Programming Projects (Addison-Wesley, Reading, MA, 1984).

- Buchananan, W. K., Hodges, P., and Theis, J. (2001). Which way the natural gas price: An attempt to predict the direction of natural gas spot price moments using trader positions," Energy Economics, May 2001, vol. 23, no. 3, pp. 279-293.
- Chang, R. L. P., and Pavlidis, T. (1977). Fuzzy decision tree algorithms. *IEEE Trans.* On SMC, 1977, vol.7, pp. 28-35.
- Chen, S. M. (1988). A new approach to handling fuzzy decision-making problems. *IEEE Trans. Syst., Man, Cybern*, Nov/Dec, 1998, vol, 18, pp. 1012-1016.
- Chen, S. M. (1994). A weighted fuzzy reasoning algorithm for medical diagnosis. *Decision Support Syst.*, 1994, vol.11, pp 37-43.
- Cheng, B., and Titterington, D.M. (1994). Neural networks: A review from a statistical perspective. *Statistical Science* 9 1, pp. 2–54
- Chih-Chung, Chang., and Chih-Jen, Lin. (2001). LIBSVM: a Library for Support Vector Machines (Version 2.31), 2001.
- Chinn, M., LeBlanc, and Coibion., O. (2001). The predictive characteristics of energy futures: Recent evidence for crude oil, natural gas, gaoline and heating oil. *Presented at UCSC working* paper # 409.
- Dao-I Lin and Kedem, Z.M. (2002) Pincer-search: an efficient algorithm for discovering the maximum frequent set. IEEE Transactions on *Knowledge and Data Engineering*, Volume: 14, Issue: 3, May-June 2002 Pages: 553 - 566
- Das, G., Lin, K., Mannila, H., Renganathan, G., and Smyth, P. (1998). Rule discovery from time series. *Proc of the 4th International Conference of Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining*. New York, NY, Aug 27-31, pp 16-22.

- Darbellay, G.A., and Slama, M., (2000). Forecasting the short-term demand for electricity? Do neural networks stand a better chance?. *International Journal of Forecasting* 16 (2000), pp. 71–83.
- Ding, L., Shen, Z., and Mukaidono, M. (1989). A new method for approximate reasoning. In *Proc. 19th Int. Symp. Multiple-Valued Logic*, 1989, pp. 179-185.
- Ding, L., Shen, Z., and Mukaidono, M., (1992). Revision principle for approximate reasoning-based on linear revising method. In Proc, 2nd Int. Conf. Fuzzy Logic and Neural Networks, 1992, pp. 305-308.
- Dwinnell, W. (2002). Data visualization tips for data mining: pattern recognition provides data insight. *PC AI Mag.*, 2002, Vol 16.1, pp 51-57.
- Elovici, Y., and Braha, D. (2003). A decision-theoretic approach to data mining. IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics, Part A, Volume 33, Issue 1, Jan. 2003 Page(s):42 - 51
- Engle, R.F. (1982). Autoregressive conditional heteroskedasticity with estimates of the variance of United Kingdom inflation, *Econometrica* 50 (1982), pp. 987–1007.
- Engle, R.F. Lilien, D.M., and Robins, R.P. (1987). Estimating time varying risk premia in the term structure: the ARCH-M model, *Econometrica* 55 (1987), pp. 391–407.
- Fayyad. U., Piatetsky-Shapiro, and G., Smyth, P. (1995). From data mining to knowledge discovery, in U. Fayyad., G. Piatetsky-Shapiro., P. Smyth., eds, From Data Mining to Knowledge Discovery, AAAI Press/MIT Press.
- Fayyad, U., Piatetsky-Shapiro, and G., Smyth, P. (1996a). From the data mining to knowledge discovery in databases. *AI Mag.*, 1996 Vol. 17, pp. 37-54.

- Fayyad, U. M., Piatetsky-Shapiro, G., Smyth, P., and Uthurusamy, Eds. R. (1996b). Advances in Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining. *Menlo Park, CA: AAAI/MIT Press*, 996.
- Ferreira, T.A.E., Vasconcelos, G.C., and Adeodato, P.J.L. (2004). A hybrid intelligent system approach for improving the prediction of real world time series. *CEC2004*. *Congress on Evolutionary Computation, 2004*, Volume: 1, 19-23 June 2004 Pages:736 743 Vol.1
- Fosso, O. B., Gjelsvik, A., Haugstad, A., Mo, B., and Wangensteen, I. (1999).
 Generation scheduling in a deregulated system. The Norwegian case" *IEEE Transactions on Power Systems*, Volume: 14, Issue: 1, Feb. 1999 Pages:75 81
- George, H. John. (1997). Enhancements of the data mining process. A dissertation submitted to the department of computer science at Stanford university for the doctor of philosophy
- Gorr, W. (1994). Research prospective on neural network forecasting. *International Journal of Forecasting* 10 (1994), pp. 1–4.
- Gross, G., and Galiana, F. D. (1987). Short-term load forecasting. *Proc. IEEE*, December 1987, vol. 75, no. 12, pp. 1558-1573.
- Guoqiang Zhang, B., Eddy, Patuwo., and Michael, Y. Hu. (1998). Forecasting with artificial neural networks: The state of the art. In: *International Journal of Forecasting* Volume 14, Issue 1, 1 March 1998, Pages 35-62
- Hagan, M. T., and Behr, S. M. (1987). The time series approach to short term load forecasting. *IEEE Trans. Power Syst.*, Aug. 1987, vol. 2, pp. 785-791.

- Haiqin, Yang., King, I., and Laiwan, Chan. (2002). Non-fixed and asymmetrical margin approach to stock market prediction using Support Vector Regression. ICONIP '02. Proceedings of the 9th International Conference on Neural Information Processing, 18-22 Nov 2002, Volume: 3, 2002 Pages:1398 1402.
- Han, J., Gong, W., and Yin, Y. (1999). Efficient mining of partial periodic patterns in time series databases. Proc. Of International Conference of Data Engineering (ICDE99), Sydney, Australia, Mar.
- Han, J., Pei, J., and Yin, Y. (2000). Mining frequent patterns without candidate generation. *Sigmod' 2000*, paper ID: 196.
- Han, J., and Kamber, M. (2001). Data Mining: Concept and techniques. San Francisco, CA: *Morgan Kaufmann*, 2001.
- Higashi, M., and Klir, G. J. (1993). Measure on uncertainty and information based on possibility distribution. *Int. J. Gen, Syst.*, vol. 9, pp. 43-58, 1993.
- Hill, T., Marquez, L., O'Conner, M., and Remus, W. (1994). Artificial neural network models for neural network forecasting of quarterly accounting earnings. *International Journal of Forecasting* 10 (1994), pp. 5–15.
- Hippert, H. S., Pedreire, C. E., and Souza, R.C. (2001). Neural networks for short-term load forecasting: A review and evaluation. *IEEE trans. Power Syst.*, Feb.2001. vol. 16,pp. 44-55.
- Hobson, D. G. (1998). Stochastic volatility. In: *Statistics in FinanceD*. Hand and S. Jacka, Editors, *Applications of Statistics Series*, Arnold, London (1998).

- Hung-Ju, Huang., and Chun-Nan, Hsu. (2002). Bayesian classification for data from the same unknown class. Part B, *IEEE Transactions on Systems Man and Cybernetics*, April 2002 Volume: 32, Issue: 2, Pages:137 - 145
- Hurst, H. E. (1957). A suggested statistical model of some time series which occur in nature. *Nature* 180 (1957), p. 494.
- Iztok, S., Georg, L., Hans-Peter, K., Heinrich, S., and Sebastian, H., (2000). Algorithm for Matching Sets of Time Series. *Article on CiteSeer, Principles of Data Mining and Knowledge Discovery*.
- John, G. H. and Langley, P. (1996). Static versus dynamic sampling for data mining. In E. Simoudis and J. Han & U. Fayyad, eds, Proceedings, Second International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, AAAI Press, Menlo Park, CA, pp 367-370
- Jingtao, Yao., and Hean-Lee, POH. (1997). Forecasting the KLSE index using Neural Network. National University Singapore, Singapore.
- Ke, W., and Yu, H., (2000). Mining frequent item sets using support constraint. *Proceedings of the 26th VLDB Conference*, Cairo, Egypt, 2000.
- Klemettinen, M., Mannila, H., Ronkainen, P., Toivonen, H., and Verkamo, A. I. (1994).
 Finding interesting rules from large sets of discovered association rules. *In Proc. 3rd Int. Conf. Information and Knowledge Management*, Nov. 1994. pages 401-408, Gaithersburg, Maryland.
- Keogh, E., and Pazzani, M. (1998). An enhanced representation of time series which allows fast and accurate classification, clustering and relevance feedback. *Proc of* the 4th International Conference of Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining New York, NY, Aug 27-31, pp 239-241.

- Kleme, V. (1974) The Hurst phenomenon: a puzzle?. *Water Resources Research* **10** (1974), pp. 675–688.
- Klir, G. J., and Mariano, M. (1987). On the uniqueness of possibilistic measure of uncertainty and information. Fuzzy Sets Syst., 1987. vol. 24, pp. 197-219.
- Koenker, R., and Zhao, Q. (1996) Conditional quantile estimation and inference for ARCH models, *Econometric Theory* **12** (1996), pp. 793–813.
- Kohonen, T. (1988). Self-Organization and Association Memory. Springer, 1988. Berlin.
- Kosko, B. (1992). Neural Systems and Fuzzy Systems: A Dynamical Systems Approach to Machine Intelligence. *Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall*, 1992.
- Langley, P and Simon, H. A. (1995). Applications of machine learning and rule induction. Communications of the ACM 38, November, pp 55-64
- Last, M., and Maimon, O. (2004). A compact and accurate model for classification. *IEEE Transactions on Knowledge and Data Engineering*, Volume 16, Issue 2, Feb. 2004 Page(s):203 - 215
- Liu, M. (2000). Modeling long memory in stock market volatility. *Journal of Econometrics* **99** (2000), pp. 139–171.
- MacQueen, J. B. (1967). Some Methods for classification and Analysis of Multivariate Observations. Proceedings of 5-th Berkeley Symposium on Mathematical Statistics and Probability, Berkeley, University of California Press, 1:281-297

- Mark, T., Leung, Hazem. Daouk., and An-Sing, Chen. (2000). Forecasting stock indices: a comparison of classification and level estimation models. *International Journal* of Forecasting, Volume 16, Issue 2, April-June 2000, Pages 173-190
- Masri, A., Mohd, F. N., Khairuddin, O., and Miswan, Surip. (2001). The Effect of Return Function on Individual Stock Price (KLSE) Prediction Model Using Neural Networks. *In Proc. of The International Conference on Artificial Intelligence, IC-AI'2001*, Las Vegas, USA, pp 409-415, Jun 2001.
- Ming, Dong., and Kothari, R. (2001). Look-ahead based fuzzy decision tree induction. *Journal for IEEE-FS*, volume = 9, June 2001 pages = 461-468 url = citeseer.ist.psu.edu/558808.html}.
- Mitra, S., Pal, S. K., and Mitra, P. (2002). Data mining in soft computing framework: a survey Neural Networks. *IEEE Transactions on Neural Networks*, Volume: 13 , Issue: 1 , Jan. 2002 Pages:3 – 14
- Morano, C. (2001). A semiparametric approach to short-term oil price forecasting. *Energy Economics*, May 2001. vol. 23, no. 3, pp. 325-338.
- Mukherjee, S., Osuna, E., and Girosi, F. (1997). Nonlinear prediction of chaotic time series using support vector machines. *IEEE Workshop on Neural Networks for Signal Processing VII*, 1997, IEEE Press, J. Principe and L. Giles and N. Morgan and E. Wilson, 511.
- Mukaidono, M., Ding, L., and Shen, Z. (1990). Approximate reasoning based on revision principle. *In Proc. NAFIPS'90*, vol. 1, 1990, pp. 94-97.
- Muller, K. R., Smola, A., R¨atsch, G., Sch¨olkopf, B., Kohlmorgen, J., and Vapnik, V. N. (1997). Predicting time series with support vector machines. *ICANN*, 999-1004, 1997.

- Nicolaisen, J. D., Richter, C. W. Jr., and Sheble, G. B. (2000). Price signal analysis for competitive electric generation companies. *In Poc. Conf. Elect. Utility Deregulation and Restructuring and Power Technologies*, London, U.K., Apr. 4-7, 2000, pp. 66-71.
- Nogales, F. J., Contreras, J., Conejo, A. J., and Espinola, R. (2002). Forecasting nextday electricity prices by time series models. *IEEE Trans. Power Syst.*, vol. 17, pp. 342-348, May 2002.
- O'Connor, M., Remus, W., and Griggs, K. (1997). Going up-going down: How good are people at forecsting trends and changes in trends? *Journal of Forecasting* 16, 165-176.
- O'Connell, P. E. (1971). A simple stochastic modeling of Hurst's law, *Proceedings of International Symposium on Mathematical Models in Hydrology*, Warsaw, 327-358.
- Osuna, E., Freund, R., and Girosi, F. (1997). Support vector machines: training and applications. *ICANN 2001*, LNCS 2130 405-415.
- Ozaki, T. (1985). Nonlinear Time Series Models and Dynamical Systems. *In: E. J. Hannan and P. R. Krishnaiah eds, Hand Books of Statistics*, vol. 5, North Holland Amsterdam (1985)
- Pawlak, Z. (1991) Rough Sets, Theoretical Aspects of Reasoning about data. Dordrecht,: Kluwer, 1991.
- Parke, W. R. (1999). What is fractional integration?. *Review of Economics and Statistics* 81 (1999), pp. 632–638.

- Pasquier, N., and Bastide, Y. (1997). Discovery frequent closet item sets for association rules. 1997.
- Pellizzari, P., and Pizzi, C. (1996). Fuzzy-like conditional density estimation in time series outliers detection, *submitted to Technometrics*.
- Pierre, Giot., and Sébastien, Laurent. (2004). Modelling daily Value-at-Risk using realized volatility and ARCH type models. *Journal of Empirical Finance, Volume* 11, Issue 3, June 2004, Pages 379-398
- Potter, K.W. (1975). Comment on The Hurst phenomenon: a puzzle? by V. Klemeš. *Water Resources Research* 11 (1975), pp. 373–374.
- Priestley, M. B. (1998). Non-Linear and Non-Stationary time series analysis, academic press, London (1988).
- Quinlan, J. R. (1986). Induction of Decision Tree. Machine Learning, Vol, pp.81-106.
- Quinlan, J. R. (1993). C4.5: Programs For Machine Learning. Morgan Kaufmann, Los Altos.
- Raymond, S. T. Lee. (2004), iJADE Stock Advisor: An Intelligent Agent based Stock Prediction System using Hybrid RBF Recurrent Network, *IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics (Part A)* 34(3) 421-428.
- Refenes, A. N., Zapranis, A. D., and Bentz, Y. (1993). Modeling stock returns with neural networks. *Presented at the Workshop on Neural Network Applications* and Tools, London, U.K., 1993.

- Ripley, B.D. (1993). Statistical aspects of neural networks. In: Barndorff-Nielsen, O.E., Jensen, J.L., Kendall, W.S. (Eds.), Networks and Chaos-Statistical and Probabilistic Aspects. Chapman and Hall, London, pp. 40–123.
- Rumelhart, D. E., and McCleland, J. L. (1987). Parallel Distributed Processing, Explorations in the Microstructure of Cognition vol 1 & 2, MIT Press Massachusetts (1987).
- Selina, C., Eamonn, K., David, H., Michael, P. (2002) Iterative Deepening Dynamic Time Warping for Time Series (2002).
- Sharda, R., (1994). Neural networks for the MS/OR analyst: An application bibliography. *Interfaces* 242, pp. 116–130
- Sarjon, D., and Mohd. N., (2002a). Mining association rules using rough set and association rules methods. *Proceeding of International Conference on Artificial Intelligence in Engineering and Technology 2002 (ICAIET' 02)*, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia, June 17-18, 2002.
- Sarjon, D., and Mohd. N., (2002b). Mining multiple level association rules using rough set and association rule methods. *Proceeding of international conference on artificial intelligence and soft computing 2002 (ASC' 02)*, Banff, Canada, July 17-19, 2002.
- Subba, Rao. T., and Gabr, M. M. (1984). Introduction to Bispectral Analysis and Bilinear Time Series Models. *Lecture Notes in Statistics*, vol. 24, Springer, Berlin (1984).
- Szkuta, B. R., Sanabria, L. A., and Dillon, T.S. (1999). Electricity price short-term forecasting using artificial neural networks. *IEEE Trans. Power Syst.*, vol. 14, pp. 851-857, Aug.1999

- Torben, G. A. and Lund, J. (1997). Estimating continuous-time stochastic volatility models of the short-term interest rate. *Journal of Econometrics* 77 (1997), pp. 343–378.
- Trafalis, T.B., and Ince, H. (2002). Benders decomposition technique for support vector regression. IJCNN '02. Proceedings of the 2002 International Joint Conference on Neural Networks, 2002. Volume: 3, 12-17 May 2002 Pages:2767 – 2772.
- Turksen, I. B., and Zhong, (1989). An approximate analogical reasoning approach based on similarity measures. *IEEE Trans. Syst.*, *Man, Cybern.*, vol 18, pp. 1049-1056, 1989
- Turksen, I. B., and Zhong, (1990). An approximate analogical reasoning scheme based on similarity measures and interval valued fuzzy sets. *Fuzzy Sets Syst.*, vol. 34, pp. 323-346, 1990.
- Umanol, M., Okamoto, H., Hatono, I., Tamura, H., Kawachi, F., Umedzu, S., and Kinoshita, J. (1994). Fuzzy decision trees by fuzzy ID3 algorithm and its application to diagnosis systems Fuzzy Systems. *Proceedings of the Third IEEE Conference on Computational Intelligence*. 26-29 June 1994 Pages: 2113 - 2118 vol.3
- Vapnik (1995) V. Vapnik. *The Nature of Statistical Learning Theory*. Springer-Verlag New York, Inc., 1995.
- Valenzuela, J. and Mazumdar, M. (2001). On the computation of the probability distribution of the spot market price in a deregulated electricity market. *In Proc.* 22nd Power Ind. Comput. Applicat . Int. Conf., Sydney, Australia, May 2001, pp. 268-271.

- Wang, X. Z., and Hong, J. R. (1998). On the handling of fuzziness for continuousvalued attributes in decision tree generation, *Fuzzy Sets and Systems*, vol. 99, pp. 283-290, 1998.
- Wang, A. J., and Ramsay, B. (1998). A neural network based estimator for electricity spot- pricind with particular reference to weekend and public holidays. *Neurocomputing*, vol.23, pp.47-57, 1998.
- Wang, X.-Z., Yeung, D.S., and Tsang, E.C.C. (2001). A comparative study on heuristic algorithms for generating fuzzy decision trees Systems. *IEEE Transactions on Man and Cybernetics, Part B*, Volume: 31, Issue: 2, April 2001 Pages:215 – 226
- Warren, T. Liao., (2005). Clustering of time series data—a survey. International Journal of Pattern Recognition (ELSEVIER), In Press, Corrected Proof, Available online 23 May 2005,
- Weiss, E. (2000). Forecasting commodity prices using ARIMA. *Technical Analysis of Stocks & Commodities*, vol. 18, no. 1, pp. 18-19, 2000.
- Widrow, B., Rumelhart, D.E. and Lehr, M.A., (1994). , Neural networks: Applications in industry, business and science. *Communications of the ACM* 37 3, pp. 93–105
- Wu, Y., and Zhang, H. (1997). Forward premiums as unbiased predictors of future currency depreciation: A non-parametric analysis. *Journal of International Money* and Finance 16, 609-623.
- Xiaohua, Wang., Paul, Kang., Hoh, Phua., and Weidong, Lin. (2003). Stock market prediction using neural networks: does trading volume help in short-term prediction. *Proceedings of the International Joint Conference on Neural Networks*, Volume: 4, July 20 - 24, 2003 Pages: 2438 – 2442

- Xi Ma; HweeHwa P., and Kian-Lee T. (2004) Finding Constrained Frequent Episodes Using Minimal Occurrences. *Fourth IEEE International Conference on Data Mining, 2004. ICDM 2004. Proceedings.* 01-04 Nov. 2004 Page(s):471 - 474
- Yabo, Xu., Yu, J. X., Guimei, Liu., and Hongjun, Lu. (2002). From path tree to frequent patterns: a framework for mining frequent patterns. *Proceedings*. 2002 IEEE International Conference on Data Mining, 2002. ICDM 2002, 9-12 Dec. 2002 Pages:514 – 521
- Yimin, X and Dit-Yan, Y. (2004) Time series clustering with ARMA mixtures. *Pattern Recognition, Volume 37, Issue 8, August 2004, Pages 1675-1689*
- Yukiko, O., Hisashi, Yamamoto., and Genji, Yamazaki. (2003). Index fund selections with genetic algorithms and heuristic classifications. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*, Volume 45, Issue 1, June 2003, Pages 97-109
- Yeung, D.S., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1994). Improved fuzzy knowledge representation and rule evaluation using fuzzy Petri nets and degree of subsethood. *Intell. Syst.*, vol. 9, no. 12, pp. 1083-110, 1994.
- Yeung, D.S., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1995). A weighted fuzzy production rule evaluation method Fuzzy Systems. 1995. Proceedings of 1995 IEEE International Conference on International Joint Conference of the Fourth IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems and The Second International Fuzzy Engineering Symposium. Volume: 2, 20-24 March 1995 Pages: 461 - 468 vol.2
- Yeung, D. S., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1997a). Weighted fuzzy production rules, fuzzy Sets and Systems, vol. 88, pp. 229-313, 1997.

- Yeung, D. S., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1997b). A comparative study on similarity-based fuzzy reasoning methods. *IEEE Transactions on Systems Man and Cybernetics*, Part B, , Volume: 27, Issue: 2, April 1997 Pages:216 – 227
- Yeung, D. S., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1998). A multilevel weighted fuzzy reasoning algorithm for expert systems. *IEEE Transactions on SMC*, vol. 28, pp. 149-158, 1998.
- Yeung, D. S., Wang, X. Z., and Tsang, E. C. C. (1999); Learning weighted fuzzy rules from examples with mixed attributes by fuzzy decision trees Systems. *IEEE International Conference on Man, and Cybernetics, SMC '99* Volume: 3, 12-15 Oct. 1999 Pages:349 - 354
- Yeung, D. S., Tsang, E. C. C., and Xizhao, Wang. (2002). Fuzzy rule mining by fuzzy decision tree induction based on fuzzy feature subset. IEEE International Conference on Systems, Man and Cybernetics, 2002. Volume: 4, 6-9 Oct. 2002 Pages:6 pp. vol.4
- Ypke Hiemstra. (1994). A Stock Market Forecasting Support System Based on Fuzzy Logic. *HICSS (3)* 1994: 281-288
- Yong Chuan et al., Yong chuan Tang; Wuming Pan; Haiming Li; and Yang Xu. (2002).
 Fuzzy Naive Bayes classifier based on fuzzy clustering. IEEE International Conference on Systems, Man and Cybernetics. Volume: 5, 6-9 Oct. 2002 Pages:6 pp. vol.5
- Yuan, Y. and Shaw, M. J. (1995). Induction of fuzzy decision trees. *Fuzzy Sets and Systems*. Vol. 69, 1995, pp. 125-139
- Zadeh's, L. A. (1965). Fuzzy sets. Information and Control, 8, 1965, pp. 338-353

- Zadeh's, L. A. (1973). Outline of a new approach to the analysis of complex systems and decision processus. *IEEE Trans. Syst., Man, Cybern.*, vol SMC-3, pp. 28-44, 1973.
- Zadeh's, L. A. (1987a). The concept of a linguistic variables and its application to approximate reasoning-I, II, III. In Fuzzy Sets and Applications: Selected Paper by L. A. Zadeh, R. R. Yager, et al. Ed. New York: Wiley, 1987.
- Zadeh's, L. A. (1987b). A theory of commonsense knowledge. In Fuzzy Sets and Applications: Selected Paper by L. A. Zadeh, R. R. Yager, et al. Ed. New York: Wiley, 1987, pp. 615-653.
- Zadeh's, L. A. (1999). Fuzzy Sets as a basis for a theory of possibilistic. *Fuzzy Sets Syst.* vol. 100, pp. 9-34, 1999.
- Zhang, Yan-Ping., Tao, Wu., and Ling, Zhang. (2002). A self-adjusting and probabilistic decision-making classifier based on the constructive covering algorithm in neural networks. *Proceedings on International Conference on Machine Learning and Cybernetics*. Volume: 4, 4-5 Nov. 2002 Pages:2171 - 2174 vol.4
- Zhang, D., and Zhou, L. (2004). Discovering Golden Nuggets: Data Mining in Financial Application. *IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man, and Cybernetics-Part C: Applications and Reviews : Accepted for future publication*, Volume: PP, Issue: 99, 2004 Pages:1 – 10
- Zeidler, J., and Schlosser, M. (1996). Continuous valued attributes in fuzzy decision trees. In IPMU' 96: Advanced Methods in Artificial Intelligence- Proc of the 8th Int. Conf on Information Processing and Management of Uncertainty in Knowledge-Based System, pages 395-400, 1996.